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Research an 0ld House

owners of old houses usually become curious about their
homes’ histories, and if they are attempting a restoration,
they need to know what was original to the structure and
what was changed or added later.

Because only research will determine whether a building
has architectural or historical importance, assembling a
house history is the first step in applying for landmark
status on the local, state or National Register of Historic
places.

The ideal house history should include the dates of
construction and subsequent remodelings, the name of the
architect (if possible to locate), a history of ownership,
and the floor plan and materials originally used.

The sources for that information are public records
(Assesor’s Records and Gunnison County Clerk & Recorder),
land or property records. O0ld photographs may provide
architectural details from various time periods. Included in
this history should also be a description of the stylistic
and construction elements. Oral histories may be available
from older residents of the county which may lend some

_understanding to various aspects of the houses’ history.

While researching all those sources may take a great
deal of time, the excitement of the discoveries usually
outweighs the frustration of blind alleys and fruitless
leads.

Documentary Evidence

only written records provide hard facts and dates. The
documents that help reconstruct a home’s history are permits
(if applicable during the time period), tax records, deeds,
plat maps and architectural records. All but the last item
can usually be found in the public records kept by our local
government. Researchers should remember, though, that not
every source will yield information on every house. The
idea is to accumulate all the documentary evidence available
and combine it with other data to develop as complete a
history as possible.

A plat of survey giving the property’s dimensions and
the measureements of the permanent structures on it may
prove useful. An up-to-date plat is one of the items often
supplied by the seller when a property is sold. The legal
description of the property is also necessary; couched in
technical language, it can be found on the deed, mortgage
note, or even the homeowner’s insurance policy, and in the
county clerk and assessor’s office. An estimation of the



date of the house construction can be made from checking the
Assessor’s records for an assessment amount that suddendly
increases in a year because the property has become more
valuable by the addition of a house or other structure.

By and large, public records will contain information
about a plot of land, and facts about the house built on it
will be presented as by-products. Researchers should
therefore take their time and be prepared to read between
the lines.

A building permit (probably not available until ?2?2?
will immediately fix the construction date, and may supply
valuable information about the property owner, the
architect, the contractor, and the cost. Permits were not
issued for remodeling or demolition in Gunnison county until
rdrdrd

If building permits are not available, the next best
source is tax records, which are often found in the County
Clerk’s office. Because real-estate taxes rise
precipitously when any significant construction takes place,
researchers should look for the year when the assement rises
disproportionately to previous years to determine the
construction date. It is a good idea to check all the tax
records down to the present, because additions and
replacements are evidenced by changes in assessments. If a
fire destroyed a building and the lot was vacant for a
while, the taxes should drop correspondingly.

It is also possible to trace a house’s history by
researching the deeds drawn up each time the property
changed hands. Deeds can be found in the County Recorder’s
office and are generally filed chronologically, so
researchers should check a Land Conveyance or some other
index first. The Land Conveyance is a listing of property
transactions containing such basic information as the names
of the parties involved, the date of the transaction, and
the location by volume and page of the relative deed in the
land records.

The deeds contain descriptions of the property each
time it changed hands. By watching carefully for changes in
those descriptions, researchers can arrive at an approximate
date for the construction of the house. For example, if a
deed dated 1890 gives no indication of a building and one
dated twenty years later does, the researcher can bracket
the dates of the house’s construction. Deeds can also show
homeowners a glimpse of a house’s social history--giving the
line of ownership and sometimes information about family
relationships.

In some localities an Abstract of Title is compiled
when a house is purchased to insure that a clear title is




conveyed to the new owner. Abstracts of Title are summaries
of the legal histories of properties as they contained in
the public records. A copy of the abstract provedes a list
of deeds and other documents pertaining to a property and
often much more.

Once a researcher has determined the basic outlines of
a house’s history, research might then continue a step
further. A social history of the occupants of the house and
the evolving character of the neighborhood can also be
composed, and once again written records will prove the best
source. Most of the pertlnent information can be found in
biographical material in the local library. Again, this is
only true if this information has been compiled at some
earlier date by someone. If not, a chronological reading of
local historical newspapers for a determined time period
might prove helpful. Often promlnent long-term families had
their family information published in a Biographical source.
Western State and the Gunnison County Public Library have a
few of the early-day published biographical sources that
might be helpful for your family name.

PHYSICAL EVIDENCE

When an exhaustive examination of public and historical
records yields date insufficient for assembling a house
history, researchers must rely on the physical evidence
presented by the building. A study of the style and
construction of an old home can reveal much about its
history, as long as one remembers that styles are revived
and copied, buildings are altered, and construction
techniques may be anachronistic(not in its correct
historical or chronological time period). You won’t want to
rely on one feature or element for dating. Construction
techniques and styles were not standardized, and sometimes
they hang on. Consider all the elements of a building for a
house history.

For a stylistic analysis of the house, a number of
excellent books are available, and several should be
consulted. Good references include John Poppelier’s WHAT
STYLE IS IT? (Preservation Press, 1977) and Mary Mix Foley’s
THE AMERICAN HOUSE (Harper and Row, 1980) as well as the
following:

The structural elements of a house can reveal quite a
bit about its age, additions, renovations, and remodelings.
The skeletal frame of a house, for example, might tell one
immediately where a Georgian colonial is original to its
period or a copy. Until the midde of the nineteenth
century, frames were either of the timber or braced types,
which relied upon heavy posts and beams with fitted joints
where the timbers met. Then the balloonj frame was




introduced. Instead of heavy timbers supporting the house’s
weight, a system of studs in each wall carries the loan. A
quick was to determine the type of frame is to check the
thickness of the exterior walls. A timber-frame house has
walls at least eight or nine inches thick, while balloon-
frame walls are only about five inches thick.

The type of subfloor uses is another clue to the age of
a building.The subfloor can be checked by inspecting the
wood visible over exposed joists in a basement. In very
early homes there are no subfloors: Heavy boards were simply
laid perpendicular to the joists and finished smoothly on
top. Beginning in the early nineteenth century, subfloors
of rough boards running perpendicular to the joists and
finished floorboards were in turn laid at 90-degree angles
to the subfloor. About 1920 the method used today was
introduced, in which the subfloor is laid diagonally across
the joists. Subfloor inconsistencies within one house may
identify modern additions.

If the basement joists are visible, owners can
investigate another clue to age. Everyone knows that lumber
today is not tue to its designated kimensions. Until about
the 1930’s, however, the lumber size classifications were
fairly accurate. If a joist actually measures, jfor
example, two inches by ten inches (or very close to that),
the building probably predates the period when lumber began
to be cut smaller than standard dimensions.

Other construction details may provide clues to age or
remodeling. For example, not until the late nineteenth and
twentieth centuries did solid masonry walls give way to
curtain walls of masonry over framing, so the latter would
indicate later construction. Nor should small, out-of-the-
way places be overlooked.

Dates and manufacturers’ names can sometimes be found
stemped on bricks, cast-iron pipes, and old plumbing
fixtures, especially heavy old-fashioned bathtubs that
subsequent owners were loathe to move.

To reconstruct the original floor plan, owners should
identify partition walls added during remodelings. Compare
the suspect wall to those adjacent to it. Is the trim
molding consistent in style, or are there different tool
marks on it? Are the paint and wallpaper layers the same?
Added plaster walls often develop tell-tale cracks where
they join the ceiling because in that area wet plaster was
put over dry. Finally, if the interior of the wall can be
examined, check for construction consistent with the rest of
the house in terms of materials and stud spacing.

Researchers who examine the structural elements
described here and combine them with a stylistic analysis




should be able to determine approximately when the house was
built and which walls and sections were original to tis
design. A more detailed analysis includes identifying and
dating the moldings, antique hardware, or even the nails
used in the original construction. This sort of analysis
probably requires the services of an expert. If you are
trying to do an authentic restoration, or if you are
researching in hopes of qualifying for jtax credits or
listing on the Colorado State Register or the National
Register, you really need professional help. The Colorado
State Historic Preservation Office has many people who can
help. See one of the Gunnison Historical Preservation
Commission members for the name and phone number of the
specialist at the State Preservation office who will help
you with your particular problem.

OTHER SOURCES

Besides compiling documentary and physical evidence,
researchers can consult the Pioneer Museum here in Gunnison.
They maintain photographic archies that may include old
prints showing the physical appearance of the neighborhood
or street where your house is located, or early pictures of
your ranch house that may assist you. If the house is of
architectural or historical interest, there may be a picture
of the building process while it was being erected. More
than any other source, photographs preserve the social and
economic information of a home or building.

Learning through oral evidence should not be ignored.
Long-time residents of a county frequently possiss
information about a house or building and its inhabitants
that predates their own lives--expecially in a small town
such as Gunnison where social history is handed down orally.

Besides being exciting and challenging work,
researching an old house or building offers a unique
opportunity to meander through the history of a previous
era--a recognition that old homes, in the city or country,
and buildings represent the human aspect of a way of life
long past.
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ast side of Main Street, taken in 1882, from the Red Lion

}[—{\:;dsncws the stone building still in use by the Gunnison
omiv‘::;e(whek;:ra{ Su‘ aogn on the corner of ain anu‘
Tomic allier Drug stands now), and the
5?1{.s;:d:s Hotel faxther up the street on 'the ek
ginia and Main. Photo courtesy of Denver Public Library
Western Collection. 4

s on National. Ti
Doet::ge?':[xbe!:ea f!sxgck and the name of the {First Na?ieorlx:;tx
December &, 1864, andfor more than thirty yéars remained the
: . Itcelebrated its eighty— i f
in 1964 with completion of a beautiful hew Eaiiateg oo sy
e familiar red brick
the familia ick that had been a landmar]
Colonel Jack Haverl
y, minstrel show ki
ground floor of the Gunnison boom. He v
Sunalson’s first newspaper, the Gunnison News
$250,000 in the mines, 103,000 of it in the
! in when it was an undeveloped hole in

k on Main Street
t

got in on the
an interest in
» and invested
Bullion King at
the ground. He

v,
“u
]
e
! “wWhat's the limit?”’ he wanted to know. ““The sky,” care-
wwaaly
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2,000 town lots in Crested Butte, Irwin, and Gunnison;
fand in Washington Gulch; a dozen or so silver veins at
several ranches, and a sawmill. Aninveterate gambler,

% was sald that he lost more money over the green cloth than

£ Jid in the mines.

rly left no monuments, he did leave some interesting
s relative to his sojourn here. One concerns his walk—
to a faro game the night of his arrival in Gunnison.

responded the dealer, sizing Haverly up as a dude.
b Haverly pulled a thick wad of bills from his pocket

started to peel off ten or so, the dealer gasped at the
ssdred-dollar notes and hastily backed down. “I meant our
smcal sky. IU's only twenty-five bucks high herel

Colonel W. H. F. Hall—for both Haverly and Hall the title
weems 10 have been an honorary one—settled in the valley in
s fall of 1878 and subsequently amassed considerable wealth
wih investments in the region. He started the Gunnison News
w April, 1880, but before the paper was really well under way
# tecorded, in its May 22 issue, the death of its founder.

The one thing the appearance of the News had done was to
¢rive home to local promoters of the district the importance
+¢ & newspaper as an organ 1o secure further investments and
«spansion of capital in the area. It was fortunate, indeed, that
wn the death of Hall, a man of the calibre of E. A. Buck took

wer the fortunes of the paper, securing complete control
trem other partners, Haverly and C. S. Boucher, in February
« 1881, Buck was an editor of New York Spirit of the Times,
+ man given to leading, not following—a reputation he sus-
sassed throughout his career in county affairs.Inall the early
yuernals, including those of his rivals, his name is mentioned
with respect, evidence of local recognition of the vital part
£astern capital was playing in Gunnison County development.

Buck Invested $150,000 in real estate and mines, and owned
fwacher’s Addition to the Town of Gunnison, where his enter—
geiatng spirit manifested itself in the setting out of 1,000
“ade trees to relieve the barrenness thathad given Gunnison
e derisive title of {Sagebrush City.}” He built 250 miles of
saephone line to the mining camps and to Leadville and Aspen,
s proposed to build his own railroad line to his coal fields
w Ohlo Creek if the incoming railroads could not meet what
e considered a reasonable rate. He spent little time in
Camatson, but the influence and effect of his dollars were
everywhere visible. Following a visit here in 1881, he went
w Europe in interests of the region, and his News bannered
e country consistently. He donated the first church bell,-
wndowed the E. A. Buck Hose Company, and offered help to

29
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QGunnison’s Main Street from New York Avenue north in the
1930’s retains a few familiar landmarks of the 1880’s. On
e immediate leftthe two-story frame that housed the Atlantic
Gardens and adjacent “‘Red Light” businesses still stands.
Across the street the stone hardware building looks much as
& did in 1881. On the site of the Adams store, next to the
Hartman building, the Gunnison Bank & Trust had made its
appearance. The First National a block farther north still

sented its red brick face, and acrass the street, the IOOF

] loomed. Gone are the city wells and the Palisades Hotel,
and a new traffic light graces the intersectionof Tomichi and
Main. Photo courtesy of Denver Public Library Western

Collection.

Local papers gave a full description of the edifice:

“‘The building is a combination of Queen Anne and modern
architecture, four stories in height, with basement and garret.
It covers a space of 125 feet square. A mansard roof covers
the front entrance. Two wide balconies, built into the struc-
ture, extend in front of the second and third stories. In addi-
tion to the main building is an L kitchen, thirty feet by
forty feet.
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Gunnison Hardware

. (Then known as F. D. STEELE HARDWARE)

CP3 ey cf

erhivys oy, oereruiip

e/ d

3 ks~ >

Was in the Third Frame Building from the left Before fhe(Breseni Masonry BulldanWas Erected in
1882. We are Proud to Carry on the Tradition of Leadership in Gunnison Progress which has Been
our Good Fortune for the Past 75 Years.

In Keeping with the Area’s Continued Growth, We Are Now in the Process of Remodelmg and
Putting a Modern Glass Front on Our Building.

Gunnison Hardware "~

Cutnosdstag U O from Saxe Camplell, 7hgt
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La Veta Hotel, queen of Western hotels, rose resplendent in 1884 to house the West’s great and

near-great who came this way. Its southernmost corner and adjacent walk served the Denver and

Rio Grande for a depot and loading platform. Photo Courtesy Gunnison Newspapers, Inc.
e 2 Bl )4 ] i

The lobby of La Veta Hotel, Western Colorado’s most ornate hostelry.
Photo courtesy Dr. Lois Borland. |
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The passing of the La Veta Hotel was a sort of commentary
on its times. It was built by a village with great expectations for
the future; it was razed by a town that never quite lived up to
them. But for a while, the La Veta lived a peacock-proud existence.

The La Veta was completed in 1884 by Benjamin W. Lewis, who
expected the hotel to be the finest between the East and the West.
Certainly the people of Gunnison thought it was, and many a
Colorado traveler speaks nostalgically of the handsome old edifice.

Originally the hotel was to have been called the “Willard House”
after the man who started the enterprise, but because of “financial
embarrassment” Willard transferred the partially finished build-
ing to Lewis and his Lewis Hotel and Improvement Company.
Gunnison responded by changing the hotel name, too, and called
the not-quite-finished building the “Lewis House.”

Linens, draperies, silver, lobby chairs, and even carpeting were |

ordered with an “LH” monogram. Then Lewis decided that he
didn’t want the place named for himself after all, so his staff was
charged with finding a name to fit the initials. They decided on
La Veta, the name of a near-by railroad pass, an appropriate title
since the Spanish words meant “the vein” and the hostelry was
intended to be a part of Gunnison’s lifeblood.
The La Veta Hotel was impressive enough to merit the name.
Built at a cost of more than $200,000 ($30,000 of the figure was
for furniture), the La Veta was a four-story building with base-
ment and garret, and took up a quarter of a block. It was pillared
and posted, grilled and gilded, and capped on top with a mansard
roof. There were wide galleries on the second and third stories.
Nearly all materials used in construction—the brick, the cast
iron, the interior woodwork including the massive grand staircase
o Vere manufactured in Gunnison. Most of the labor was local, too.
g Lhe first floor alone might have suggested to the hotel its self-
imposed title of “the finest in Colorado.” All rooms opened from
the forty-by-sixty-foot rotunda, which had hammered-glass sky-
lights and a commanding staircase, one of three in the hotel. Built
for nearly $7,000, the staircase was black walnut, ash, and oak
and was covered with corrugated brass plates. The newel, which
had cost $300, was twenty feet high and two and one-half feet
thick, and twelve men were required to put it into place. Steps
were carpeted with fine Turkish rugs.

On the first floor were a bank with fireproof vault (it had eight-
een boxes weighing 36,000 pounds, and the locks for them re-
portedly cost $2,000), a railroad ticket office, and a waiting room.
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NO MORE THAN FIVE IN A BED

From 1912 on, guests were given a free meal
or room for each day the sun didn't shine.
Knocked down to a single story, the I
squats like a mud hen in a run-dowr
of town.
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2 A,!wn»smry, “brick structure. built 1n
881 by Alonzo Hanman, this business
block is one of. the inal buildings in
the ;commercial district/; Its, Italianate
style is-gvident in_the brick cornice and
in the segmented-arch windows and lin-
tels along the second story facade. Large
display-windows flank a  recessed  door-
way; s is lyplcal of bunneu blocks [rom.
this. period.” &
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Webster Building (later Gunnison Hotel), 1881
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Gunnison Hotel

The Gunnison Hotel building was finished in 1882 as a mercantile
building and occupied by Shilling's Company Drygoods and Carpets
( The firm's name may still be seen along the south rim of the
roof.)

The business was sold and in time the store building became the
proverty of H.W. Webster who operated a store there.

Later, it became a hotel, then a rooming house. In the years
1927-1933, it was operated by Carmen Johnson and her husband.

She served banquets for groups like the American Association

of University Women and for sororities from Western State College.
She rented the dining area for large bridge parties.

In the 1970's, an ice cream parlor, "?in Pot Annie*s, ran for a
time. Then a restaurant managed by Michael Grazier served lunches
and dinners for a time. The building, as of 198, is empty.

This old building was strongly constructed. The brick walls are
said to be thirty inches thick.
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7. Name
WEBSTER BUILDING

GUNNISON HOTEL

and’'or common
2. Location
229 North Main Street

street & number — not for publication

ty, town Gunnison, ____ vicinity of

etate COLORADO 81230 code county ~ Gunnison code

3. Classification

c ory Ownership Status Present Use

—— district —— public X occupied X< agriculture —— museum

building(s) _X_ private ol ied .8 ___ park

i slruclurc — both . work in progress - educational . private residence
Public Acquisition A)scessihle —— entertainment — religious
- In process >_yes: WERE — scientific
—— being considered — yes: unrestricted —— Industrial - transportation

a0 ) — military X otherSoclal

4. Owner of Property

name'. Gunnison Hotel Partnership

streot & number £+ 0. BOX 209

Crested Butte, ___vicinity of state COLORADO 81224

city, town

5. Location of Legal Description

Gunnison County Courthouse

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc.

street & number 200 E. Virginia Street

city, town Gunniscn, state  COLORADO 81230
Representation in Existing Surveys
Folorad t 6
title hls({orlg §‘1‘¥8§ ST has this property been determined eligible? _Xyes __no
date . Ongoing ___tederal _X_state __ county ___local
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cription

Check one eck one
. ent —— deteriorated unaltered £ _ original site
d — ruins Iallﬁrﬁd —— moved date _
: § ___ unexposed sIig

scribe the present and original (if known) physical appearance

The Webster Building (Gunnison Hotel) is one of Gunnisor's most disti i

e We i ¥ Y stinguished
buildings. Being three stories tall, the structure. i : ype 2
along Gunnison's Main Street, Al RO g

- The building is located in the business district on a singl % p
The lot is oriented east and west and sets near the centgg sfthglg?ocil)t.
on the street's west side. It is abutted on the north by a single
sjcorey commercial building and on the south by a low, two-storey structure
Since the low horizontal form of these adjacent buildings extends to both A
ends of the block, the three storey verticalness of the Webster Building
looms like a tower in the block's center.

The structure itself peasures 258X30%, -~ I4¢t4's constructeg of red brick,
probably locally made™, -laid -in -a-stretcher bond pattern® on a foundation
of coursed native sandstone and rubble. On the north, west, and south
walls the brick is unadorned and broken with minimal, apparently utili -
tarian,bays. The sides of the building are unremarkable, originally
having been painted in boid black and white lettering, "Dry Goods &
Carpets."

.‘here vere originally two chimney pots on each side opening upon a flat
roof. Hidden from view by the building's height and by the vertical
extension of the side walls and facade, is a skylight, locatediin the
center of the roof. This prismatically shaped ceiling bay provided a
light  source for 'the “interior portion of the third floor and, through
a tempered glass floor insert, for the second floor as well,

Although these individual features enhance the overall appearance and
function of 'the building, §he_facade is the focal point.:. It has distinct
Italianate characteristics” so popular in the late nineteenth century for
use in commércial buildings. The first floor has .4 .central entrance
flanked by two large, store-front window bays. These are divided by deco-
rative piers which support a cast entabulature. The second and third
stories are characterized by eight Iarge bays, four per floor, which

are finished with stilted sandstone lintels. These rectangular arches” .
are polished and carved, giving the middle portion of the facade a
simple, yet intricate, effect. The brick used in the facade is glazed
and a lighter shade of red than the simple brick which comprises the re--
mainder of the structure.

The facade is finished with an ornate cast iron, bracketed cornice, em-
bracing the central bays beiween cast iron detailing-at the bottom and
top of the build%ng’s front. Being of galvanized iron, and painted from
their errection,”the cast iron pieces are the focal point of the facade.

.The interior of the Webster Building sow different uses g‘or each floor.
The ground floor was a large open space with plank flooring gnd an.ornate
pressed tin ceiling. Just to the left of the main entrance is a wide
staircase giving access to the upper floors. The second floor was a
storeroom and living quarters for the proprietors. The third floor was

See continuation sheet.
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open and used as a meeting hall. The original pressed metal ceilings still
remain.

Since little of Gunnison's commercial architecture from the early years re-
nains from the early years, the Italianate characteristics of the Webster
3uilding are more distinct than if surrounded by similar features. The
structure has been virtually unaltered exteriorally. All dominant

nterior features, ceilings, floor inset, and skylight remain.

1. Duane Vandenbusche, The Gunnison Country, Gunnison, Co.: (B&B
rinters,1980);p, 145,

2. Robert Packard, ed. Ramsey/Sleeper Architectural Graphic ‘Standards,
'he. American. Institute of Architects, 7th edition, New York. P. 223

3. Marcus Whiffen, American Architecture Since 1780: A Guide to
he Styles, Cambridge, Mass. (M.I.T. Press, 1969), D.97%

4, Ibid.

'5. Gunnison Daily Review, August 25, 1882.
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Areas of Significance—Check and justify below

. . P 4 planning ____ landscape architecture ___ religion
1499 ___ archeology-historic . conservation — law ___ science
/0-1599 — agriculture - economics i literature sculpture
500-1699 X_ architecture - education . military I social/
,1700-1799 art —— engineering —— music humanitarian
4 1800-1899 1 commerce —_— i 2t phl —— theater
£ 1900 — communications —— industry P g . S5 Pt i
3 o ___invention 1+ it ___ other (specify)
o
specific dates 1882 Builder/Architect unknown

of Signi (in one

The Webster Building has been a Gunnison Landmark since its construction in
1882. It is the focal point of Gunnison's Main Street. It is one of three
remaining commercial buildings in the downtown district which has retained
its historical integrity. A center of commercial enterprise for one hun-
dred years, its owners were also important characters in local politics and
in recreation.

Architecturally, the Webster Builing was, by Gunnison's standards, -elaborate
and grand. Built by Milo Matteson for use as a retail store, the Gunnison
Daily Review Herald on August 22, 1882: "Matteson's thrce storey brick buil-
ding 18 ready for the galvanized iron cornice. It will be one of the finest
looking buildings in town and the most substantially built." One of the
first permanent masonry,commercial structures built downtown, the store,
operated under the name Shilling and Co.,opened to a booming Gunnison

sne for retail sales. The town was recently served by the Barlow and San-
.gson Stage and Freight LiTe and the opening of the Denver and Rio Grande
Railroad in August of 1881.

Matteson came to Gunnison from Chicago. He operated another retail store
in Gunnison from 1880. He contracted for the construction of the bui]d%ng
in January of 1882 and occupied the finished structure August 18, 1882.
Located it one of Gunnison's highest buildings, Shilling and Co. became
Gunnison's most outstanding dry goods establishments. Matteson sold the
building and business in 1889 to Herman Webster who ran the business in
the building until his death in 1920. Webster had come to town irom Vermont
to run a rival dry goods® store. Successful in his new eriterprise, soon
the building and the entire block took on the "Webster" name. Webster was
influential in local politics,was councilman, and maygr of Gunnison. He
also served as a director of the First National Banlk.

Webster married May Smith, a native of Illinois,in 1885. She was best known
for her donation of a large sum of money to the’ city of Gunnison to be used
for the construction and mzintenance of a recreation and social hall. The
building was constructed in 1935. Known as Webster Hall, the structure is
still in use today.

The first floor of the Webster Building has been in continuous use as retail
space since the building was constructed. The second floor, originally
living space for the proprietors and a warehouse has been converted to
tel rooms. The third floor was used originally as a social hall, 0dd-
1lows and Masons met in the space and numerous theatrical events and
socials were held on the premises. i

In summation, The Webster Building finds its major significance in its
architecture, early and unusual for Gunnison, in its continued importance as
a social center, and for commercial impacts for a centuny. R
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-l. Duane Vandenbusche, The Gunnison Country, Gunnison, Co.: (B&B Printers,
1980, ) p. 68.

2. The Gunnison Daily News Democrat, January 11, and August 18,1882,

3. Carol Crowle, “"The Gunnison Hotel", 1980.
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7. Description

Condition Check one Checlk one \
tlent . deteri X originalsite

ruins _ % altered moved  date =

unexposed  slight

Describe the present and original (if known) physical appearance

The Fisher-zugelder House and Smith Cottage dominate the surrounding area becanse of
their imposing sandstone block construction. This mussiveness is tempered by intricate .
stone carvings and wood embellishments,creating a dignity which' has transcended one
hundred years.

These structures are located on three corner lots in north-central Gun:ison. The
arca is typically residential, generally composed of single fumily dwellings with few
multiple occupancy units and rentals. The property is in Gumnison's First nddition
wherein lot sizes are 25' X 125'. The lots, there were four until 1962, run cast and
west, comprising a site which is approximately 100 X 150', including a 24' strip of
city right-of-way on the south and east. Oriqinally on the site's north-west corner
there stood a barn which was razed circa 1958.

The most complex structure on the property is the Fisher-Zugelder House; it is
a two storcy, perpendicular gabled, sandstone, resideniial building. The housc is
comprised of two distinct parts, as if separatc simple gabled structures were consoli-
dated; there is, in fact, a common stone wall between the two sections. The main, two
storey portion is on an east/west axis and measurcs 23' X 25'; the less dominant,
single storey component is on a north/south axis, measurcs 15' X 25', and is off-set
to the south, creating an irregular "L" plan.

Originally, the main house was partitioncd into scveral small rooms. The down-
stairs living area consisted of a stairwell hall, a formal parlor, and a dining room.
The single storey part was divided into a kitchen and a study. The upstairs consisted
then, as it does now, of two bedrooms; a bathroom was added later.

on the far west portion of the sitc, next to the alley, scis the Smith Cottage.

It is a sandstone, single-storied, simple gabled structurc on a north/south axis.
It too is a residential building, but it is much less complex, being compr of a
single stone rectangle mex uring 18' X 25' and having a shod-type frame addition on
the northern,secondary facade. Initially, thi% addition houscd a kitchen, wl;ile the
stonc portion was partitioned at mid-point into a living room and a ' .droom.

Bot” houses exhibit a dominating vernacular flavor in their detail. Each has a
simple floor plan made up of one or two rectangles. Tons of stone rest perfectly
plumb on a foundation of indigenous hard=pan and rubhle. Plain stone walls are
broken infrequently with minimal bays. fThese walls are double-layered with a dead
air space between and are a consistent cighteen inches thick. They are laid in aa
interesting combination of a one height ashlar pattern on the most visable sides, an
uncoursed, roughly squarcd pattern on the least visable poption, and even an uncoursed
field-stone form high on the north wall of the main housc. In addition, the design
simplicity is further represented by 2" X 4", 2" X 6", and 2" X 8" rough-cut floor
joists and rafters, with native, whitc-wood plank flooring throughout both residences.
The stone walls have an interior base of mud plaster with a coating of lime plaster;
partition walls are lath and plaster on rough-cut 2" X 4" studs. The voznagulur char-
acteristics culminate in'sawdust ceiling insulation and pegged sash frames.

This simple local interpretation, howcver, is tempered by European Revival forms,
undoubtedly brought to Gunnison by westward expansion and by numerous architectural
guides and books available during this period. The Fisher-Zugelder llouse and Smith
Cottage have distinct Gothic Revival clmracboristi 5 This style, which dominated
eastern architecture between 1830 and 1860,  is characterized by sweeping verticalness
which made it popular in ecclesiastical designs. In these buildings, it is represented
by elongated windows and sharply pitched gables, lending a perpendicular appearance to
both main facades.

Please see continuation shect.
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In addition, the Italianate?style of a later period is dominant in the
structures' detail. Local stone masons carved rope-like patterns in the stilted,
segmental arched windows and door lintels and extended sills; all of which are carved
from clear, light sandstone. Th® Ttalianate style is also evident in the Fisher-
Zugelder House's south-facing verandah. This 24' porch is flat soofv(l and squarc
with a heavy bracketed cornice, highlighted by an ornate frieze.

The verandah detail and some interior detail are exactly repeated in several
other Gunnison residences., The brackets and frieze are duplicated on other ncarby
porches,and the dominating interiBrfeature ofTheTFisher-Zugelder House, the stair-
case, with its relatively ornate newel post and baluster, is preciscly reproduced
in at least one other local house. The frcquency of thesc decorative details through-
out town leads one to assume that the pieces were available through mail-order
catalogues.

.} There is one design alteration and a few frame structurcs on the site. A
shed-ﬁco(ed dormer was added to the south side of the Fisher-zugelder louse circa
1930. Also, this house has a small, clapboard sided, shed-roofed, frame

addition on the west side. Its origin is unknown, but it is presumed to be original.
one, rccently built,storage and wood-shed scts apart from the stone structurcs
and is temporary and portable.

The simple, local orientation of these buildings, similar to but unlike other
stone structures in Gunnison, is moderated by European Revival influences.
The two effects combine to form a “transitional vernacular style." The massive
strength and simplicity of native stone, combined with the intricate detailing
of eastern and Europcan influences, blend to form a visually pleasant unit.

1. Ken Opfer, personal interview, Gunnison, Co., Junc 1983.
2. C.A. Helmecke, personal interview with previous owner, 1978.
3. Howard Channcll, personal observation, 1976.

4. Robert Packard, ed. Ramsey/Sleeper _QrchiLcctural Graphic Standards,

The American Institute of Architcctls, 7th edition: New York:, page 223,

5. C. Eric' Stoehr; Pona’ll’;“_lif}'PLi_?L",' Albugquerque, N.M.: (U.N.M. Pres
1975%.) pp 29-34.

6. John Blumenson, Identifying American t\r'(‘hileclUrv,“Nﬂs.hVille, TN.

(American Assn. for State and Local History, 1977), Pedl.

7. 1bid., ‘p. ‘37,
. 8. C.A. Helmecke, personal interview, 1978.
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8. Significance ™

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below

L Wiy istoric 2 planning landscape architecture_.__ religion

—— 1400-1499 . archeology-historic conservation — ~aw —-- sclence

-— 1500-1599 ___ agriculture - economics —  literature "~ —- Sculpture

——1600-1699 __X_ architecture - education - military - social/

—-1700-1799 ___art -.— engineering music humanitarian

_X..1800-1899 _ commerce s = i —— theater

——-1900- - communications X industry —X- politics/government  ____ transportation

# — invention -X_ other (specify)

- —— e e e e Builder is_assos

Specific dates 1880-1881 Builder/Architect Frederick Zugélder

% of Signifi (in one )

The primary significance of the Fisher-Zugelder House and Smith Cottage lies in that
they werc someof the first elaborate and permanent residences constructed in Gunnison
Further, they represent a unique transitional vernacular form, typical of Gunnison's
development, and finally, persons associated with the houses impacted the locale,
region, and state.

Being the first §Lonc residences built in (;unnisun,1 the houscs were erected beginning
in October of 1880° and were complete in June of 1881. As described in Bo-anza
Victorian, Colorado mining town development gencrally fell into four phasc exploration,
'settlument, camp, and town. Gunnison's progress follows the modcl. The camp and town
phases described by the author are most pertinent to the Fisher-zZugelder House and
Smith Cottage.

The camp phase in Gunnison began circa $9%9-and continued until 1881. As mining in-
terests grew in outlying areas, saw mills began operation and frame structures began
to appear. Architecture, however, remained simple as tents and temporary structuroes
from the settlement phase were gradually replaced. Social organization was manifest;
city streets were plotted and city government was established.

During the camp phase, city fathers successfully formed a town committee and incor-
poration papers were drawn up. Those papers were filed in January of 1880. Thue, the
newly incorporated city began its move into the town phase. Structures became more
permanent and elaborate in nature. It was durjing the transition between camp and
town phases that the Fisher-Zugelder House and Smith Cottage were constructed. That
transition is exemplified in their architectural style.

As new industry developed in Gunnison to meet evolving demands, change occurred
rapidly. Oie new industry, the quarrying of local sandstone, began in 1880 when de-
posits alony the Guarnison River were utilized. Quarries owned by David Fisher, who
was general manager of the Gunnison Stone Co. and Quarry, flourished. By July of
1880, Fisher advgrtized one hundred cords of cut stone for sale, including twenty-
five fine sills. Because stone was Fisher's business, he decided to use this
native material when building his home. He contracted with Frederick Zugelder, master
mason, stone-cutter, and contractor for the job. Zugelder arrived in Gunnison in
1879 from Rochester, New York. As a mason he found steady work.

Well respected in his field, Zugelder laid the door sills at the new Gunnison County
Courthouse in 1881. After completion of the Fisher-Zugelder-Smith construction,
Zugelder went on to build a number of fine masonry structures locally. His primary
notability came in 1888 when he investigated a large granite deposit, later known as
the Aberdeen Quarry, south of Gunnison. Samples of the excellent grey granite were
sent to Denver for analysis. The granite was selected as the construction material
for the Colorado State Capitol. Frederick Zugelder served as the quarry-master on
the project which employed hundreds.

Please see continuation sheet.
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Architecturally, the Fisher-zugelder House and Smith Cottage are significant due
to thrce basic features. First, the technique and materials of construction and
detail are a reflection of Gunnison in 1880. Next, the homes became prototypes
for future stone construction here until architectural styles altered. F‘inally,
these houses are some of the few remaining early bnildings which are relatively
unaltered and retain their historical integrity.

The Fisher-zugelder Smith constructionreflects a number of factors which inter-
played to produce the kind of architecture used in Gunnison's camp phase. The
first of these factors was that early building had few impacts upon it from outside
the area. Local builders used what they had and adapted it to local conditions
to produce buildings representative only of this particular location. This type
of construction, commonly called vernacular, exhibits itself in these houses
primarily in the choice of sandstone, rough-cut frame timber, and simple forms.

The architectural transitions which occurred during the time’ of construction
are indicated in these houses through the personal attention to craftsmanship
and decorative detail by Frederick Zugelder. While basic vernacular architecture
tends to be expedient and functional, the work of the builder goes beyond vernacular
in these houses. One non-functional detail which illustrates this point is the
hand chiseled corner work.

In additon to the a,bove, local vernacular architecture was gradually changing as
impacts from outside Gunnison were felt. THese residences are perfect manifestations
of this progress. The evolution of architectural style was the result of rec
factors : the availability of architectural building guides and -catalogues, im- .
proved transportation, and the influx of eastern craftsmen.

In 1880, t ¢ Barlow and Sanderson Stage and Freight Co. began regular service
to Gunnison. Items from guides could now be ordered to dress up local architecture
with fancy mail-order detail pieces. Thus, the use of European Revival style trim
pieces became popular and feasible. Mail-order detail is seen in these homes in
the elaboratc verandah and stair detail.

Builders, like Frederick Zugelder, came to Gunnison as part of the westward ex-
pansion of the U.S. They brought with them tcchnxquesq%dkconcepts not based
locally. The beautiful hand-carved motifs on. the Itali e window and door lin-
tels on both house and ccttage are an. interpretatxon, using local materials, of
European Revival themes.

Architectural guides had impact on more than builders. A new middle-class of

'people had money to spend. They were interested in building permanent homes with

form beyond function'to display their taste and wealth. In 1880 and 1881, few
homes of quality and style were built here. The grand stone houses became models
for other stone buildings. ApproxxTitely six contemporary structures stand.

As evidenced by old photographs, the mbdification of Gunnison's architecture

‘ between 1880 and 1885 was phenomenal. There was an almost total shift from ver-

nacular architecture to building based on European Revival themes. Thus, by
1883, houses like the submitted property were seldom built.
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1t is unfortunate that few contemporary buildings have survived. Of thosc that

have , most have serious alterations. Boom town growth does not lend itself to
the preservation of the old. The Fisher-zugelder-Smith houses have survived
Gunnison's changes. Perhaps that survival is due to their grandness and the
permanence of the stone.

The last important person associated with the building of the site was Gunnison
pioneer, pavid Smith, who owned- the cottage. smith was,) ne of the earliest white
settlers in the region, arriving from virginia in 1875. He was appointed the
first Gunnison County judge in 1876 by Governor John Routt, and held that
position through the 1880's. Smith was much involved in local matters. He was
influential in democratic politics and was instrumental in the founding of
Episcopal Church meetings in Gunnison. When the congregation decided to build a
church, identical sandstone to that found in Smith's Cottage and the Fisher House ==

.was chosen. The new church was built with similar technigue, using a simple Gothic
Revival style.

Being the first stone and among the oldest structures extant in Gunnison, the
Fisher-zZugelder House and Smith Cottage represent several significant aspects of
Gunnison's early development. Architecturally, the fine stonc craftsmanship and
construction depict a form and style indicative of Gunnison's camp days. Persons
associated with the construction were instrumental in guiding the city, county,
and state in architecture, politics, and community development. Materially, the
stone is a reminder of the once flourishing quarry business which helped to move
Gunnison into a lasting city.

1. Martha Sullenberger and Steven G. Baker, The Historical Architecture of Gun-
nison, Gunnison County, CO. A Review and Evaluation, (Montrose, Co.: Centuri

Research, Inc., 1981.), p. 93.

2. Gunnison News, Oct. 23, 1880.
3. Gunnison Review, June 11, 1880.

4. .C. Eric Stoehr, Bonanza victorian: Architecture and Society in Colorado
Mining Towns, Albuquerque, N.M.: (U.N.M. Press, 1975.), pp.10-17.
5. Gunnison Review, May 22, 1880.
6. 1bid., July 3, 1860. s B
7. Ann and Helen Zugelder, perschal interviews, Gunnison, CO., April 1983.
. 8. Gunnison Democrat, Feb.9, 1881.

9." Wallace Moore and Loilé porland, "Quarrying the Granite for the State Capitol," »
Colorado Magazine, XXIV, (March 1947).

10. H. Anthony Crosby, Preservation Architect,' National Park Service, Denver
Fedeulvcenter, personal interview, Tincup, CO., May 1983. ﬁ’l/"
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Alonzo Hartman home, Gunnison, Colorado.

whrececd
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Gunnison:

Dos Rios

Tt was a Christmas day in the 1870’s when a tall young man, still
in his teens, dismounted from his burro— right into Gunnison
country history.

He was Alonzo Hartman, a descendant of Daniel Boone, who
had been sent from Denver to take care of government cattle for
the Los Pifios Indian Agency. He reportedly was the first white man
to establish pefanent residence on the Western Slope.

Young Lon Hartman had lived for several years in Denver, where
he had camped on the present site of the Shirley-Savoy Hotel. He
also knew the mountains and the Indians, so he was well suited for
2 job at the agency.

After he had lived on the Western Slope awhile, Hartman be-
came the first postmaster of the small village of Gunnison. He later
told his daughter the reason he never smoked was that having to
stand behind the small window of the post office and smell the foul
breath of the tobacco-chewing miners and trappers cured him of
any taste for tobacco.

One of Hartman’s close friends was Jake Hinkle who had come
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to Colorado to seek his fortune. Hinkle told Hareman about his
pretty young niece in Kansas, Annie Haigler, a school teacher, and
persuaded Hartman to write her. He did, and the two corresponded
for quite a while before she came West to meet him. When she lefc
for Kansas, the two were engaged. They were married at her home
January 29, 1882,

By that time Hartman, who had spent his wages buying catdle,
‘had buile his holdings into the prosperous Don Rios Ranch, where
he moved his bride into the first frame house in Gunnison. A mile
west of the present-day town, the Dos Rios ranch house is “Union
Pacific” yellow with brown trim and has a shingle roof.

Though 2 plain frame house was elegant enough in Gunnison,
Hartman made his home even fancier by varying the direction of
the clapboard. For the most part it is horizontal, but under the
front gable and the front window the boards are vertical, while
above the window they are on a herringbone diagonal.

The gable also sports a handsome bit of gingerbread trim. There
is decoration on the porch supports that form pseudo-arches. Though
dilapidated, the house still stands in the shadow of the one that re-
placed it.

The frame house was a pretty fine place, indeed; but Hartman,
by now a wealthy rancher, decided an elegant house was not good
enough; he wanted a mansion, so he built one. For miles around it
was known as juse that, “the mansion.”

Like any good rancher, Hartman built 2 new barn and stable
before he started the house. The keystone near the top of the barn
gable gives the date of completion — 1889. Surprisingly enough,
the outside walls are brick, which withstood  fire a number of years
280 that gutted the inside and would have demolished any frame

arn.

His home, Hartman decided, would be in front of the frame
house which could be used for servants’ quarters. It was just a short
distance from the log post office he had established, and was reached
by a long circle driveway.

e man Hartman picked to design his show place was the local
Methodist minister, a gentleman named Fuller who blended Victo-
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rian and Western achitecture with touches of church elegance. He
came up with a large, showy, ill-arranged home. When it was fin-
'.shed, it had cost Hartman $45,000.

Constructed of brick which probably was made in Gunnison,
natural stone, and wood siding, the house is basically rectangular
with a tower, completely out of scale, on the front.

' The windows of the tower are set into Italian arches, round-
headed at the top. Though the size of the arches is the same, the
length of the windows shortens as one ascends the stairs. There are
seven windows and eight arches. The third floor of the tower has
conical roof, capped with a metal “dunce” hat and a weather vane,

The entrance hall, by far the most clegant part of the house, has
a commanding white oak staircase circling up the tower to the sec-
ond floor. The balistrades, instead of being straight spindles, entwine

- to form S-shaped designs winding to the top of the stairs.

On the wall behind the staircase, most likely inspired by Fuller’s

" church background, are long, narrow stained glass windows, im-
ported for Taaly. The top sections of the windows are jewel-colored
flowers and owls. The pancls below are long strips of colored glass,
and underneath them are diamond-shaped picces of leaded opaque
glass.

Three-fourths of each window is quite conventional, but the
bottom panel is a unique piece of abstract art in apple green, tur-
quoise, and orange. Mrs. Hartman must have fallen under the spell
of Louis C. Tiffany’s new colors and textures of glass. The leaded

.anes, which seem to be a random sampling of lefc-over shapes and
izes of glass, allow a Tiffany play of light and color.

The windows are framed with white oak arches, and the keystone
area at the top of each is enhanced with a wedge-shaped picce of
carved wood.

The fireplace across from the staircase is tile of a pinkish brown
color and che figures in relief at the top and sides are Italian, purchased
at an early Chicago World’s Fair.

Hartman’s daughter remembers that the hall held two large show
cases. Many of their displays were Indian artifacts, most the gifes
of Hartman's Indian friends, Chief Ouray and Chipeta.
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‘ The entrance hall opens into a sitting room with a velvet-draped
bay window alcove. The arch to the alcove is decorated with hand-
some wood filigree to match the oak doors. A leaded, colored glass
window look's out onto what is now the kitchen but was originally

- the butler’s pantry. To the right, through an archway decorated
with wood filigree work, is the library. Both rooms have tile fire-
places as well as parquet floors.

There is a dining room with fireplace and also a glassed-in play-
room and bath, both added later.

The basement originally held the kitchen, and food was brought
to the dining room in a dumb waiter. However, 2 subsequent owner
removed the extravagance and moved the kitchen upstairs.

The basement with its low ceiling is dark and gloomy, but it does
have a fireplace and carved white oak staircase connecting with the

+ one in the entrance hall.

Three bedrooms and a bathroom are on the second floor. The
bath may have been put into the house when it was built.

The third floor belvedere is a white-washed room with many win-
dows looking out to all parts of Gunnison County. It is reached by
a trap door and narrow fold-up staircase. Probably the little room
was used just for storage by all owners except Mrs. Hartman who
painted there.

She climbed the steep narrow stairs in her full skirts, locked the

(@ 7 coorsecurely so no one could bothes he, and painted her proper
Victorian pictures. No one remembers whether or not she had talent,
but she was prolific, and the house was filled with her work. On
the tower wall next to a window, she painted a precty miniature of
a waterfall.

After 2 number of years, Hartman’s ranching business declined,
and he started a general store. When that, too, proved unsuccess-
ful, the family sold their home and moved away.

Te was worked as a ranch by several owners until a development
firm, that fictingly named itself “Dos Rios,” purchased the place,
parceled off most of its ground for vacation home sites, and left the
ranch a gentleman’s farm of sixty acres and the home a sort of de-
frocked manor house.
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Waterfall painted by Mrs. Hartman on the tower wall,
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This mansion was erected on one of the C st ed lonzo

Hartman as carly as 1875, It is still used by the present ow i Gunnison News-
papers, Inc ;
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Charles Krutsingers at 217 S. Main

- (left) and the Charles A. Petersons
next door to the north. Both were

built by the late Herman Mauer,

PAIR of Gunnison’s fine old -
, homes which were visited Dec. 8
during the “‘open house” were the H

. Georgla. It was the second annua¥

Jr. for his sisters about the turn of
the century. Both are not

beautifully ** restored ' and
redecorated in keeping with ' the
period. The tour also included
Visits to the John Knowles home on:
_the Gunnison River and the Rev.
Charles. Dreyers Community
‘Church - parsonage at 202 E

event sponsored by the Gunnison
Branch © of ' the . American
Association of Univeristy Women
for 'the benefit of Gunnison
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THE LATE Tom and Lu
Murray are shown on the
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the century, 1t was completed
in 1902 by the late Herman
Maver, a time when houses

Notice the log cabin at right.

For a look at the house now,
see pages 6 and 7. 4 Vo

of this type were a luxury. 00
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has be- was
of Bill

G from the vestl- ~ operates on ‘gas or electricity,
Dule is the “parlor.” The hand- “was  imj Cecho-
Carved pediments and chan. slovakia by the Marraves 1t
delier are original features of - contains ‘163 ' mirror.backed
4he room, when completed in prisms. Other features of thy
1902, The chandelier, which  parl Sheridi




TY GRIFFIN and B ", when - the
Maver talk in' the “Sitting  house was built at the turn of
Room” of the. old house they ~ fhe century. The chandelier
are in the processiof restor-_ is an original part of the'
ing. The wood pediments sep” * house and can be lighted by *
arating _ the” room “from ‘the \ ‘elther gas, as the manufac-

lor, - in _ foreground - were . turer intended, or' by elec-
handcarved by Herman Mauer,'. tricity. The clock set on the

mantle-of " the._fireplace” |
‘merly belonged to Rose Ma
Howland. She and ‘her }

"band Joseph owned the

ous LaVeta Hotel
for 16 -years.. To. Mau

right is the dining room.
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WL;‘}u.d%g;@:énis_.,werawm Acecel Al il
' Tﬁe..ProP¢r+LjL.-gnf.na(|H came To the Seon,

; l"“—‘@‘*'s*“‘s“ rom. her —easi"o:l'e;@ i

d- 4o Douglas lytle and Oflie B lytle .

i Peowetls o s

. _D_[C[iio_]_aw-sf»—h/]@er—umd—m\ e Mos hu-
. to Merv C. hude an d Dagoth (:(--1 Aude .

ot C Zahradka. .and  Nona N.

1k n:ﬁ;gills;ib,ovec\_wHJ(L\n'\,stami\LA

,_-{_—o_“D‘e',gv@pfind.‘qu‘s,..w‘nere he. worked \n

v..,,]:Sr‘omo'l‘..ion--and publi e'd'«i» Sor +he Denver
and Rie Gyande Yailroad,
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1880 Samuel B. Ho.r\)e.l;{ o James Ke“d’u‘{ :

AMBH Hinkle (brother-in-law of A Havlman)
and Alonzo Hortman ,

1380- 89 During this Pe.r‘nocl Hhe %llowinﬁ names
appear - AW.Pekering , Joseph Kelmel
Wm . B.Owens.
1889 - 1917 Nla.r(:, Grace Miller (wl{-e A S.J'.M':[ler)
1891 - Nar;.( Crage Miller and S«d(\)es{‘erI‘Mi\ler
secured a loan of $(,000 from ‘Peoyle'sﬁuildivg)
Loan and S&vings Ass. of Syracuse, N.Y, |
1911 - MC\F% Grace Miller sold to Balsora M& Neill
Soor $2,ooo, Gun.S.+Lean held Hhe Vnor'i'go.ae.
1919. Sold +o Anga M Fostfer.
1939 to HelenDowns 1943 -t Robert P and Fern Hoyt,
1944 Hoyts seld to Wayne Lickiss Sr. and Jennie
M. Lickiss
1949 T Waﬂhe Lickiss Jr
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Church of
The Good Samaritan

“Episcopal”

WELCOMES
YOU

Sunday Services

8 a. m. Holy Communion

10:00 a. m.
I3t and 3rd Sundays, Holy Communion
2nd and 4th Sundays, Morning Prayer

307 W. Virginia Ave. THE REVEREND ROBERT BABB Phone 641-0429

icar
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_LZXo_Siajn_a;!}_Cofaon to Samuel er\/e,:;{ :
.__A.___(ap?omfed,m_Lﬂ 7.to serve as County Clerk)
_u¥g0 EugcneﬁJwb&on_ConVeHed all the original

land 4o Tames P. Kelley , Amby Hinkle and
n;d_TgAloanuchxri’man»rexe.mP'f'{ng a piece 270 X 300
~and building in which he resided in block
63 - consideration ‘¢l 000 .os .

IS’ZQ Omgmal land Pla‘H‘ei b(lj AHw‘f’man James
PR Ke“eH Frank Mc Naster anc Ep J:cobSon
___._(,ex.ceptobove desanbed, lacre.) as 'Hf)e. Frs‘]'
— Rl LRl Gunnis o,

_lﬂLAnn&_w_:{EubsgmconveHeiJ afs 1o Lewis Rice.
] for Fars e, Lew-24




1983 - Now loeﬂan a per‘lod when owners had o

~ hard time Ynee‘l‘ing financial obl(ao. fons
1823 - Lien - The Gunnisen Gas and Whter Co. #8552
1883 - N.C.Reid, Wm.Avery +o J;Sefk.ne Rettit (n,m)ﬂl,ooa"i
(19,26) L Price to N\AreroF?‘,nacr For ¥ 200
128 Sold to George Holmes $or?7ost (1n,1¢)
1395 _ To E.P. Shove to Charles Hamlin for $3e00% (17
1290 - (19,20) St brought bﬂ Walker Burnett (Hhought
15 be Bill Endner's maternal gqrandf ather) for
#5148 due,
1896 Rirks and Co. lien maderials furnished 42102 .
1897 Sold for foxes due $28.6/ ftunkagad by (awqer
Dexter 17 S@.PP.
19060 Seld fortoxes due $43.29. Same purchaser.
1903 . and on — Owners Maude Farley Cuthbert #500™),

H.H Foﬂﬂ ($2000] )El'hel Rirsons ; Nellie Sumr(r')‘?r")s then

her da.ug"ﬂ'er, Kate Eastman ,Cgsepk Latimer | John
Craner , Baldwin Ransen (19¢1) who added room
on back of house. ODuring this last Period

lots 18,19,20 were combined as one gite.
Kew .24
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_  Guwnison - #1STORY
Homes

116 East Gunnison Ave.

_CB-Nickman - Recejver - Ws. land office
Lake, Cihi Fo Wm. HEHal. to Kel\eld an
Padman . 1380. Oumership remained |
i oith the Hinkle kel Y - dartman %m]\g
L up to about 1990, land was mor+ﬂag
and redeemed several +imes, ot times |ot I ov lot s,

By 1896, & wos owned by Frank Rdame and Lous Cras muck.
Sale Carvie ¥roll of \cd’s 13.14 - 15 doolk P(ace. Nov, @, )93,

It is thought the house on these lots wae built during
-Hne \‘&Oo\é . The Obs‘t'rod' Was brouglﬁ"’ up +o dafe ahd a5
suit cleared the Fitle for the Krolls 1n August 1y,

The home was occupied until 156 by Carvie Kroll |

Kew-3x"




On June 26, 1957 +the propedy was bought bLJ
NMilten T and Rath Dennisen wha cantinue o [ive
There,

There is vio way 4o defermine the dufe on
which the house was bult, Tts c\ee‘nﬂn and materials
irdicode Hhe early yeors in

Gunni@.om }?35+or¢:( )
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s 204 g

_ij;pra]aerly, is ghown
darin‘? the 19¢0's_almest buried
: ' In_winfer snews - and c{l'sp/afc/-
.Zﬂ,q__&‘[ay‘e‘é/ oﬁf':l'.ng_ erden in the 'yard,back of the house.
Ihe_bwsaéegmﬁ_:%mc rooms _ina Series with o shed
perch_an the rear. I3 went fbraug/z additions and aﬁanges
to its PLeJWf' State off 1965,
_‘ﬁ?eerﬁnm_gfkm_ﬁ;u nc(_anc/eLz%zLSAed Floor when it
_Was removed. in (350 wkre pu—b/:&[zec{ in 1882 So the. angma/
structare must _bove been builtthen.
. The tirst_lond owners were Tomes P }Q//,y, Amby f/m/r/e \
Mﬁmmjarfmm_&w/ng “the years 1850 on.. property

whas faken_by - 'HLBaurn‘;_/ for faes, .m:)ncq.borrl'fwei
cw-27
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M;ﬂ:d aad_'bﬁen_mace_maney_backowd
_Amf_duci_ng_ﬂl}s ﬁ'mc_ﬁ_éemma_i[ae_pmﬂéfgy_gzq _
__beth Qrlena Shacklefoed and_Cbarles Shacklebrd
_ Who _received a Rdemption cerfificate , dated March 13/502
— from the oounty treasurer, The tares on_all fowr lots
910,11, 12 bbek IS _in 190 were #26.3a., The Sucklefords
__Sold_the property To James R Estes, May 31,1201, ¥ oo -
_(A_’ﬂstjgﬁéiﬁéwm&achﬂmk/e‘grdé walnut C[{'m’ng .
_table whiek bas been in this block since the 19525.)
Mareh 1907 - Vimes R Estes sold 15 bho H. Eastman
 who_deed it to_his wife Corvie D. Ea.s-rltman. On
_ﬂdamwﬁémjeg_so/d,-.fojnni e M. Downey .
— Dec.22, 209 Wm. I Doig bauﬂb’ffsf‘ﬁe,, pro fef/'f/ '
_April 12 ,_/,f?zL,AI”.Gn'bbenﬂbau ght the proper Ty
_ The_Bunnison Savings and loan_held modgages en
the_prpecty dom dimetotime, By 1928, the |
‘ -,pm#&g__m‘in_ﬂ&-name_mﬁféadnﬂl@ribéen.
_JbﬁJm_umb[e.,.,fb  meet the morlqage_payments
Solwas foken over in 1934, Bg 1937, “The
‘2me Dwner: éanv&rforafion bad +de. 1» f‘ﬁe?

property, It was purchased ot this time by — .
Arn flelson Zigelder and John B. Zuge lder.

__Jhe phoperlyd Jropj

Fewr7 |
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Gunnison’s first school building bears the date 1881 above
the door. With its interior modified, the structure is still in
use as a residence. Photo courtesy Frank Tikalsky.

< L 5, 27\

Jld Pine Street School, built in 1880, with the ““coffee mill”
10use on the far right background (now occupied by the Wayne
Lickiss family), and the Parks and Endner planing mill left
background. Photo courtesy of Mrs. Ruth Sullivan.
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it g¥aais i

The School House bt
A Towu Co

1t and presented by
ny in 1877

The Gunnison Town Company of 1879 was composed of eight men, whose {n-
terests were to be equal in laying out, improving and selling 160 acres of land.
Those not having land embraced in the plat were allowed to pay for their share,
making in the pool twenty acres for each member. The town was beautifully
laid out in the spring of 1879, with wide streets and avenues. Water for irriga-
tion was put upon the town site and the town by.the first of July commenced to

thrive and grow substantially. (As reported by Sylvester Richardson in the
Gggnlson Review.)

Pev-28
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GUNNISON COURIER PAGE 3
SUNDAY, JANUARY 23, 1955

A HISTORICAL REVIEW OF THE
EARLY GUNNISON SCHOOLS

The first school that was con-
ducted in Gunnison County was a
log cabin built on “squatter’s
rights.” The teacher, Miss Hotch-
kiss, taught this school during
1876 and 1877.

An old shoe shop on south Main
street was the site of the first
school in the town of Gunnison.
In 1877, a town company built a
school building in west town and
gave it to the town. The purpose
of this donation was to encourage
people to build in the west part
of town. Mr. A, O. Milner was ap-
pointed the first County Superin-
tendent in 1877. During the year,
1879, the first School Board was
elected, consisting of Mr. Frank
Smith and Mr. E. T. Teachout.
The second County

Mr. Nathaniel Jennings,
clected in 1879.

The first school taught in the
district was in the winter of 1878~
79 in Charles G. Tingueley’s pri-
vate house. There were fifteen
children of school age in the dis-
trict, but only six attended school.
Miss Ida M. Gould taught during
the winter of 1879-80 in Professor
Richardson’s drug store. There

was

# * * *

were about 20 pupils in attend-
ance. The third school was taught
in the winter of 1880-81 in the
Baptist Church by William D.
Beckett, who had between 40 and
50 students. In 1879; there were
about 40 school children in the
district; in 1880 about 75, and
about 134 in 1881.

In 1880, school board members,
Mr. A. O. Milner, Mr. E. W. Bur-
ton and Mr. E. T. Blackly were
responsible for building the
school on Pine Street. (The one
that was torn down last spring).
This school housed the Junior
High School until 1939. School
was discontinued in the building
donated by the town company in
1877 and moved into the new
building on Pine Street. During
the first school term the building
fell and had to be rebuilt in the
summer of 1881, at a cost of $10,~
000. Various buildings around
town were u to house the
school during the construction of
the Pine Street building.

Many events took place during
the year, 1882. The La Veta Hotel
and the First National Bank were
built. Two new school buildings
identical in construction were put
up. One was in east town, the
other in west town.

The laying of the corner stone
of the Colorado Street School was
an important event in the history
of the ,Gunnison schools. Mayor
George N. Moses declared it as a
general holiday and that all stores
be closed.

The public school opened Sept.
1, 1884 in charge of Professor An-
drus and his corps of six teach-
ers. There were 107 students in
the east building, 75 in the west
building ,each ~representing 5
grades, 1st through 5th, and 59
students in the hig hschool repre-
senting 5 grades, 6th through 11th.
More were expected with in the
next few weeks.

These schools are in good con-
dition; the children are regular in
attendance; the teacher competent
and consicentious and the board
anxious to do as much for the
school as the income will permit.

* El
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606 North Wisconsin — Centrally Located
in Gunnison, Colorado

B gt

Ideal Site for Fraternity or Apurtment House!

Known as the RULAND HOUSE, it
as two baths and two kitchens and
resently could accommodate 16 men
omfortably--and with plenty of room
o study. Steam heat. It has a large
ard and plenty of parking space.

For an organized group of congenial
men this property could be rented very
reasonably —- nossibly even shared by
members of TWO agreeable fraterni-
ties. On a leased basis, I would be will-
ing to refurnish as neces

A fraternity or other organized group might well buy this property from
me with liberal, long-financing, build their own frat house on the south corner
lots and retain the present improvements for an income-producing annex.

S S S T : .

e e e e e R ek o e anmtnnt maa MADTIN T

H@ (F&e)

Ruland
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Cuenm House

. Cuonin House, corner New York-ave.
and Tenth-st. Only first-class hotel in
the Gunnison country, Btages leave the
h>use every morning, 1

oo Yo §

West Gu.nmsan

Tho first ball of the Bachelors of Gun-
nison came off at the Cuenin House, on
Thursday evening, July 22, and wan, as
anticipated, In viow of the preparations
that had been madé, one of the grandest
social events of the kind ever glven Int
Gunnlson country, Tho attendants began
to gather about 9 o'clock, and at half-past
9, the large dining room was ecleared and
with thelr falr partnery the gonts gathercd
for the grand march which came oft alittl s
before 10 o’clock, about poventy-five coup-
les participating.

The house was crowded, mans eoming
trom a lang distance to ariicipata 1a. the
first event of the kind ever held In tbla
city, The party was largely composed of
the better class of citizens, some coming
from a distance of twenty-five miles.

w

wuu arrayed in beautiful costumes.
* The supper, prepared by the genlal,

| wholo-souled landlord, Jos. Cuenin, waa §

| tables were arranged in the hall outside
theball room, and nothing was laeklg t

The following Is the

PROGRAMME:

Grand March—Our Mayor,

Quadrille—HIls girl in Hays,

Waltz—Mrs, 8, G. Gl

Lanclers—Mra. George 8lmmonda,

Bebottische—MNiss Ella Clark,

Quadrille Waltz—>Mrs, I Brannen,

Quadrille—Mise Mattie Hall,

Waltz— Mra, Frank Steel.

Quadrille—Mliss Ella Field.

Fireman's Danca—Nra. J, W, Toge

Waltz—Miss Fisher.

Virginia Reel—Mra. W, Owens,

BUPPER.

Quadrille—Nrs, T, C. Russell,

Lauciers Waltz—Miss Etta Gould,

Polka—Mrs. D. H. Bldwell,

Quadrillo—Miss Lotta Bagley.

Gallop—Mrs. E. C. Teachout,

Varsouvienne—Mrs. Gentry.

Lanclersa—Mra. A. A. Kingsley.

Quadrille Waltz— Our Glirls from Ruby,

Waltz—Lady’s Cholce—Where is my
true love, can any ono tell?

Quadrille—The ladles from Gothle.

Schottische—The Bulle of Lake Clty.

Modley—Darling I am growlng old seek-
fng silyer mines and gotd.

Everything pasved off ln the most agree.
able manner and the praises are unani-
mous that no similar event, in this section
of Colorado was ever conducted more
successtully and satisfactorily,

The varlous committees were as follows:

ON ARRANGEMENTS

Fred Krueger, Alonzo Hartman, Ed,

Sells, Warren Mullin and L, I, Clark.
ON INVITATIONS: .

Mayor F. G. Kubler, Howard Evan

Asaron Helms. John Duval, G, W, Btowar!

H and E. P, Shove.

ON RECRPTIONG
F. Sutherland, W, T. Clark, Fred Ban-
derson, J. O. Rogers and W. H. Wai

¥ worth,

ON CARRIAGRS:

Geo, Yuleand A, A. Kingsley.
Danclng was kept up until 4 o’clock A
M. yesterday,when the stages,which were
prepairing to roll out for Lake City, South
Arkansas, Pitkin and other points, and the
1ight of day Just appearing over the high
peaks east of us, admouished the happy
couples that It was timo for the merry
festivities tocease; 30 the music stopped
and the firat ball of the Imlulou o{ Gun-

nlson lul]t-urn ed a(ne dis,
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Comuiittee on Areangements:

FRED KRUEGER, AL
WARREN MULLIN.
e

20 HARTMAN, ED. SELLS.
L. H. CLARK.

2 ol .
Concmitlee on Tnvitations:

MAYOR KUEBLER,

HOWARD EVANS, JOHN DUVAL, B P SHOVE,
AARON HEIMS, «
P

-

Comumittee on Receplion :

D, W. T. CLARK,

FRANK SUTHE
N, W. 11 WADSWORTIL

Commillee on Carrin
b
GEO. YULE,

Carriages furnished
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By 1872 the miners who were flocking into the Elk Moun-
tains and the San Juans, could no longer be restrained from
taking what they wanted on Ute lands. In seeking to force
another treaty to satisfy the miners, Indian Commissioner
Brunot discovered that Ouray’s son, stolen some years
previously by Plains Indians, was still alive, and a promise to
help recover the boy was used to secure cooperation from
Ouray. (The son was never returned to Ouray, and the story
goes that the young man refused to be repatriated.) In 1873
the Utes met with the Commission at Los Pinos, agreed to
further reduction of their reservation, and a treaty was rati-
fied by the United States Senate in April, 1874. The Utes were
to retain hunting privileges in the Elks and San Juans, and
they were removed to the Uncompahgre in the fall of 1875.
Frictions arose there, leading to further restrictive treaties,
and they ultimately traded their Colorado hunting grounds for
the somewhat bleaker regions of the Uintah Basin of Utah.
Otto Mears, the road builder of the San Juans, was engaged
to move them out, and it is said that he himself paid the Utes
two dollars per head to move on.

Gunnison in 1882, west side of Main Street northfrom
Tomichi. First building on left is the Frank Adams store,
second is the Hartman building, still standing and bearing
the date 1881 in the arch at center of the roof front. Steele’s
Hardware is next. The three one-story and the two two-story
frames from mid-block to the corner of Virginia were de-
stroyed in the 1902 fire. First National Bank, Gunnison
Brewery, and the Webster three-story appear in the second
block. On the horizon snow-capped Mount Whetstone and
Mount Carbon overlook the Ohio Creek Valley.
< 12

her as ‘‘East Side

south.(Mislabeled by photograpl

West side of Main Street from Tomichi
The three two-story frames between
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the bankrupt public schools in the spring of 1882. Buck's
help in that direction was refused: the more charitable said
the offer appeared as a loan, which the board was unable to
see any way of repaying, but which would have been acceptable
as a gift. More partisan opinion held that the offer had been
refused because the board was Republican and Buck was a
Democrat. To have accepted help was to admit their own
inefficiency. Anyway, the school, built in 1881 at the corner

omichi and 8th—and still occupied eighty-three years
later as a residence—was forced to close before the end of
the year.

Buck's News, a seven-column folio published on Saturday,
faced the ordinary vicissitudes of 1880 Gunnison, being
printed at first in a two-room log cabin near the southeast
corner of Main and Tomichi, opposite the Red Lion Inn.
Parts of the roof were missing, and, on occasion, part of its
walls when a runaway team took off a section of the front of
the building. Within the year the News consolidated with the
Gunnison Democrat, a five-column quarto which had made
its. August 4, 1880, to Ve D
under N, P. Babcock, Editor. Babcock, along, lean individual,
promptly dubbed ““the tall darning needle” by Eugene Field
of the Denver Tribune, was well able to hold his own against
the attacks of his 1, eview.

A month after the first edition of the News; the second
newspaper in town, the Review, made its appearance, with
Frank A. Root and H. C. Olney, owners. Root was editor,
Olney being occupied with his Lake City Silver World and
his position as Land Office Registrar.

Root, with his son Albert, a boy of fifteen, walked the
seventy-five miles from Saguache to find that the type and
material for the projected newspaper had been upset a time
or two en route from Denver, and the whole pied ot had been
dumped on the corner of Tenth and San Juan Avenue to await
their arrival April 21. Since the News had made its debut
just four days previously, it seemed imperative for the Review
%0 lose no time in getting into the fray. A rude building was
started in West Gunnison, with the floor laid first, the hand
press and type cases installed, and the walls assembled
around the plant. There was not a shingle in town, and—like
the News office—its roof leaked in about fifty places. The
compositors spent as much time waltzing back and forth to
keep their materials out of the rain as they did actually
setting type. The wide cracks in the floor might have been
considered less than a handicap, for at least the water could
run on through without being swept out.

30

This residence at the corner The Edgerton House, built in

of Spruce and Georgia was 1881, and still used as the

built no later than 1882 and residence of pioneer Roger
is still in use. Teachout.

e

TEE

East side of Main Streer, taken in 1882 from

National Bank, shows the Tabor House (later ahied ‘e
Palisades Hotel) on the corner, Vienna Bakery, and the
two-story frame buildings now occupied by an antique shop
and the Johnson Restaurant. The bullding with the front

extreme left the old stone Masonic building in whose base-
ment the pioneer Gunnison News was published in the 1880s.

31



Competition among the current publications is no less real
than in the old days, but language is considerably toned down,
and there is little resemblance to the early journalism that
battled over every issue at hand.

All the county newspapers of the 1880’s were united in one
cause, however: to bring more and more capital to the country.
Paramount was the need for a smelter to reduce the wagon-
loads of ore streaming from the hills, soit was with rejoicing
that Gunnisonites learned that E. R. Moffet of Joplin, Missouri,
had decided to build a smelter in Gunnison. It was constructed
on the hill north and east of the city—just above the present
site of Western State College—and “‘blew in’* December 16,
1882. Although it worked intermittently for a few years, no
amount of promotion could disguise the fact that the process
was not a paying one, and its abandonment in the mid-Eighties
was a foregone Later i 1
the Lawrence smelter a mile north of town, and the Lewis’
Tomichi Valley Smelter—were equally discouraging.

Gunnison City was still riding the upswing of the boom in
1881, however. Dave Wood's large freight outfit was advertis-
ing service from his huge warehouse in Gunnison to Lake City,
Capitol City, Delta, Montrose, Ouray, and all points south
and west. Wood had 500 head of horses, oxen, and mules at
work from his twelve-lot corrals on Tenth Street, and in one
day handled as much as 500,000 pounds of freight—400,000
of it being ore and the other 100,000 supplies for the mines.
He moved with the advance westward of the railroad, eventu-
ally moving himself out of a job. The Sanderson stage line
fared no better, of course, with the last of its coaches leaving
Gunnison August 22, 1882. The stage barn was torn down in
December of 1884, and, along with two lonesome Concord
coaches, shipped by rail to Montrose.

and Sanderson might well foresee the end of their
mule and horse-drawn services, but for other investors,
Gunnison, in 1881, was still a wide-open field for acquisition
of wealth. That year aGerman count and his countess financed
the first oil drilling derrick inthe valley. It was located about
a mile northwest of the King Ranch onthe Ohio Creek road to
Irwin. If they found oil, newspaper records fail to disclose it.
The possibilities of striking oil in this much-blessed country,
engendered periodic spurts of optimism from those who felt
that—with everything else Gunnison County had—she should
surely have oil. In 1902 at least three organizations of county
residents kept the idea alive; and twenty years later, local
newspapers were still plugging the possibilities. Oil had been
struck, presumably at 335 feet, on the Dollard ranch near

Castleton in July, 1920. This proved a false alarm, and to
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date Gunnisonites have had to content them:
hard-yock kind of gold. s
but back in 1881 anything seemed possible. Thi:
. This was th
{he:lxv;hi': Jcl)lhn kLaWSm’! made the first cigar in the cl[ys an:
. L. Clark took charge of a poor house to a o
fﬂllu' %auems—al! middle-aged males. gt
n the fall W, B. Spencer advertised for fift,
ly subscribers,
at $80 a year and $10 initial fee, for a telephone system 1n
Gunnison. By October 28, he had his quota of fifty signed up
and in November began setting up poles. The lines were not
acuwally in service before the first of theyear, 1882, with the
5 S 5 P
D&RG freight
office in mid-January, By the end of the month .
operating throughout the town. e
Among the fifty first subscribers were Sheriff J. H, Bowman,
Mayor F. G. Kubler, the Mullin House, Miners Exchange
ank, News-Democral, Parks and Endner Planing Mill, Yule
and Mullin Livery Stable, Yard’s Dance Hall, George Walsh
Saloon, and Dave Wood's Freightoffice. J, A. Dofflemeyer was
in charge of the first switchboard, and Jennie Pomeroy the

first “hello girl.” A switchboard 14 8 inches, wi
six signals, is in possession of the local offll:e,‘ané"{lﬁsg:ﬁz::
to be that used for the Gunnison-Irwin connections late in 1882
Although one-third of the businessmen had discarded the
phone by June 15, 1883, as too costly, the system operated until
lace In 1885, at Which ime c was discontinued for a number of
s.

bt Rz
East side of Main Street north from Tomichi gives a closer
look at the Tabor House, the city well, Vienna Bakery,
Conrad’s (later the Murray) Saloon. $
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East side of Main Street, showing the old Palisades hotel, and the
Masonic Temple, left rear, in 1882.

Tomichi Avenue west from Main Street in 1882. At this intersection
Ellen Jack's runaway buggy upset.

i

North side of Tomichi Avenue, east from Pine Street, in 1882. On a k S
Jivery stable sign in the third block, Gunnison’s only lynching took. Gunnison’s Main Street, west side, north from Tomichi Avenue (pres-
“ace. It is now the site of a modern motel. ent US. 50), in 1882.
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The old South Park depot in Gunnison quickly fell to decay and ruin

after the narrow gauge Tine was abandonbd. 1t e frequently used as

a shelter by knights of the road. Photg courtesy Gunnison News.
.

papers, Inc.

A |
Only existing photo of Baldwin i its heydey shows the mill and com-
Py houses on the Ohio Creek hillside. Here one reiim. enjoyed a
most unusual “rabbit” stew. Photo courtesy Camilie wrc,
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joyed. Here the men

fiernoon horse races were frequently enjoye en

s o e town gather on the boardwalk to watch the out
come of a four-horse run. Photo courtesy Mrs. Bob Reece.

X d here. All

ing and tying a calf wasn’t done for a rodeo crow Al

ﬁz?szgl:;tdyoi for branding, even l!ll: b_e-crulc);ed [cllomw_‘cm

the foreground, who is heating a branding iron. Photo courtesy
Denny Wilson.
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